
 
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

 

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, 10 September 2019 at 7.00 pm 
Room 26 (2nd Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 

 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair) 
Councillor Christabel Cooper 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel: 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this meeting. 
 

Agendas are available on the Council’s website www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

Date Issued: 2 September 2019 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

10 September 2019 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  4 - 12 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting and note any matters 
arising. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To note any apologies for absence or lateness. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether 
or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other 
significant interest which they consider should be declared in the public 
interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest 
as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, 
then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from 
the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. Councillors who have 
declared other significant interests should also withdraw from the meeting if 
they consider their continued participation in the matter would not be 
reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a conflict 
of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation 
to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee. 

 

 

4.   'OUR PEOPLE' WORKFORCE UPDATE  13 - 30 

 This item provides an update from the People & Talent department on: 

 Workforce context & measuring success 

 Organisational development 

 Staff survey  

 Get Ahead 

 Apprenticeships 

 Performance Management 
 

 

5.   BREXIT IMPACT REPORT  31 - 42 

 This paper is adapted from the latest in a series of briefings updating 
Cabinet Members on the potential impact of Brexit on H&F and the 
mitigating actions being planned or developed. 

 



 

6.   THE PROCESS AND IMPLICATIONS OF INTRODUCING A 
DIRECTLY ELECTED MAYOR IN H&F  

43 - 47 

 This paper considers a proposal to introduce a new political model in 
H&F, that of a directly elected mayor. The report sets out what the 
process would be for introducing a mayor and cabinet model of 
governance in H&F, in place of the current leader and cabinet model, 
and what the cost and implications of introducing that model of 
governance might be. 
 

 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability Committee 

 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 18 June 2019 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rowan Ree (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
Guy Vincent, Zarar Qayyum and Dominic Stanton 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services 
Reform) 
 
Officers: Kim Smith (Chief Executive), Matt Sales (Assistant Director of 
Programmes and Assurance), Martin Calleja (Assistant Director of Efficiency and 
Zero Based Budgeting), Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director of Social Care), Tara Flood 
(Strategic Lead for Co-production), Dale Cox (Assistant Director of People and 
Talent), Jon Skaife (Assistant Director of Research and Innovation) 
 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Item 5 - Customer Care and Complaints - Members noted that the vision for 
improving the way residents access Council services hadn't been shared with the 
Committee yet. 

ACTION: David Abbott to follow up 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 29 January 2019 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Guy Vincent (who arrived at 
7.27pm during Item 4). 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

4. CO-PRODUCTION IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM  
 
Tara Flood, Strategic Lead for Co-production (job sharing with Kevin Caufield) 
presented the report and discussed the progress being made implementing co-
production across the Council. Tara joined the Council in April 2019 in the role of 
Strategic Lead for Co-production – one of the key recommendations of the report of 
the Disabled People's Commission was 'Nothing About Disabled People Without 
Disabled People'. 
 
Tara said her experience so far had been really positive, amongst all senior staff 
she'd met there had been a real shared enthusiasm for co-production. Her role was 
to encourage and facilitate departments to put co-production into practice and, with 
Kevin Caulfield, she was creating the tools to enable that. Tara talked about the work 
here being ground breaking in terms of the uniqueness of the role but also H&F is 
the first local authority in the country to commit to co-production with disabled 
residents and so therefore there is a lot of interest, outside the borough. 
 
Though only months into the role, the co-production leads had already been involved 
in the following: 

 The West King Street Renewal Programme – a ground-breaking 
redevelopment project that was co-produced and included a disabled access 
consultant. The project had passed the planning stage and the Disabled 
Residents Team were meeting with the architects now to discuss the internal 
fit. 

 Disability equality training for 200 Social Care frontline staff. A training 
analysis report was being drafted now - staff were keen to be part of follow up 
sessions so they reflect on how their learning can change their practice. 

 A social care plan to commission a British sign language live service for deaf 
residents. 

 The direct payments support service specification was co-produced with 
disabled residents. 

 Work on the independent living position statement which will support the 
social care department to think differently about how to deliver their services. 

 The H&F co-production implementation group (HFCIG) was about to have 
their third meeting. The group involved disabled residents, councillors, and the 
Strategic Director of Social Care. 

 
Tara Flood and Kevin Caulfield also reported to the Parliamentary Select Committee 
in May to talk about the work being done in H&F and encourage other boroughs to 
move towards the aspiration here. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Rowan Ree, asked how the Council was reaching out to 
disabled residents to be involved in this work. Tara flood said community co-
producers were key. Officers had met with Action on Disability and were working on 
building capacity through training and support for local disabled people. The goal 
was to have a diverse team of disabled people that can do this work across the 
Council. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how officers would evidence the impact of this 
approach and monitor progress going forward. Tara Flood said she had been 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

drafting a work plan and monitoring framework with detailed measures of success 
which should be available for the next meeting. She added that Manchester 
Metropolitan University had approached H&F to do an independent evaluation of this 
work and she was meeting with them in July to take it forward. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper noted that H&F was already getting some recognition 
for this important work and asked how it could be shared more widely. Tara Flood 
said officers were considering holding an event in the Autumn for London-based 
Local Authorities on co-production. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform, asked Tara if 
she knew of any other co-production leads. Tara said other Council's had run short 
term pilots, but H&F were the first Council to create a permanent post. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked if there were any difficulties reaching parts of the 
disabled community - e.g. the disabled black, Asian, and minority ethnic 
communities. Tara Flood said we need to find more effective ways of reaching out to 
those disabled residents who are most marginalised, for example disabled asylum 
seekers and refugees, but the Council was getting some expertise from Bristol to 
support this. Tara also talked about those disabled people in out-of-borough 
placements and the need to find ways to engage in co-production opportunities. 
Currently the Council relied on borough-based organisations to reach out to them. 
 
The Chair asked how the implementation group were chosen. Tara Flood responded 
that there had been an open recruitment process. One of the group was also on the 
Commission which helped give some consistency in terms of understanding the 
vision. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how long it would take to implement the 
Commission's recommendations. Tata Flood said some were more straightforward 
than others. She was already working with commissioning officers in social care to 
improve quality assurance and service design - but culture change and embedding 
the UN convention on disabled people's rights would take longer and were more 
difficult to demonstrate. 
 
The Chair asked how closely the co-production leads were working with finance and 
the zero-based budgeting programme. Tara Flood said she was working with Martin 
Calleja (Assistant Director for Efficiency and Zero Based Budgeting) - looking at 
service review documentation to see how and if officers were talking about 
engagement and participation and to encourage departments to identify a budget for 
co-production in their ZBB proposals. The Chair asked what would be different if the 
Council wasn't under severe financial constraints. Tara Flood said if more money 
was available she would like to see co-production leads in each department and 
programmes in the community led by disabled residents. 
 
The Chair thanked Tara Flood for presenting the update report and noted that the 
Committee was very interested in the co-production work being done across the 
Council and would like regular updates. 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

The Committee asked to be sent the co-production work plan when it was finalised - 
and for regular updates on the implementation of co-production across the Council to 
be sent to members. 
 
 

5. INTRODUCING THE NEW PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM DEPARTMENT  
 
Martin Calleja, Assistant Director for Efficiency and Zero Based Budgeting, 
introduced the item and explained that the new Public Service Reform (PSR) division 
was comprised of five areas: 

 Zero Based Budgeting 

 Research & Innovation 

 Programmes & Assurance 

 People & Talent 

 Communications  
 
Zero Based Budgeting - Martin Calleja 
Zero based budgeting (ZBB) was a fundamental shift from adjusting historical 
budgets to starting from a ‘zero position’ and reviewing the outcomes services need 
to deliver and how they can best do that. This new approach was being taken in 
response to a reduced level of efficiency savings and increased growth in recent 
years - against a backdrop of further funding reductions in the region of £50m from 
2020 to 2024. 
 
Programmes and Assurance - Matt Sales 
Programmes and assurance brought together functions within Chief Executive’s 
Office and Corporate Programme Management Office (PMO). It would provide 
assurance on Council priorities, plans and major programmes and projects - and was 
the corporate owner of the delivery of the business plan. The service would also 
drive performance management and improvement through insights and interventions 
- and be a centre of excellence for programmes and change. 
 
Research and Innovation - Jon Skaife 
Research and innovation aimed to facilitate activities across the Council that enabled 
insight, smarter activity, strategic clarity, and learning & improvement. 
 
People & Talent - Dale Cox 
People and talent included the traditional HR Operations team that provided HR 
support, advice and guidance to departments and schools. The new service also 
covered learning and careers support, resourcing and talent, organisational 
development, policy, and the wellness centre. Dale Cox noted that they had also 
launched 'Get Ahead', an internal career development programme and two of the 
PSR Assistant Directors had been appointed through the programme. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell said he saw PSR as the 'engine room' of the Council - a 
centre of change and innovation that supported the work of all other departments. He 
took a moment to thank Lisa Redfern for all of her hard work over the past year, 
managing both the Social Care directorate and setting up the new PSR department. 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked if the ZBB process would impact on the quality of 
services. Martin Calleja said ZBB wasn't about cuts - it was looking for opportunities 
to do more for less. 
 
Councillor Qayyum noted this was a huge task given the financial climate. Hitesh 
Jolapara agreed that it was a challenge but noted that services have been having to 
make efficiencies for a long time now. ZBB was in addition to that ongoing process. 
ZBB gave H&F an opportunity to look at how it compared to other Councils and their 
services - and what areas for improvement and efficiency were available.  
 
Councillor Guy Vincent asked about the early achievements of the different teams: 
 

 Martin Calleja noted that three of the five functions were brand new and had 
only been running for a few months. He said that the ZBB programme was 
costing £620k to help make £50m of savings from 2020 to 2024. Without ZBB 
the Council would have to make traditional service cuts. 

 

 Jon Skaife explained that his function largely covered its costs through 
commercial activity. A key element to grow over time was ideation - the 
Council had a workforce of around 2000 and with a little support his team 
could pick up ideas from them and take them forward. 

 

 Matt Sales commented that the Programmes & Assurance team had 
improved the Council's internal decision-making and assurance framework. 
Now there are more robust processes in place to make sure senior officers 
have high quality information at the right time to make better decisions. 
Management boards were currently looking at how to ensure residents data 
was kept secure and a new corporate performance framework had been put 
in place to track progress across the organisation. 

 
Councillor Vincent said he wanted the department to better publicise this work, in 
way that brought it alive for residents and to be clear about what results were being 
achieved (for example, through case studies etc.). 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked what the Council planned to do to improve 
performance management for staff. Dale Cox said there was a standard process of 
appraisals and one-to-ones, but he wanted to improve this in the near future - partly 
through developing managers as coaches and raising the bar for leadership and 
management capability. Members suggested an item for September on improving 
performance management - how the Council can motivate, manage and assess staff 
in the modern workforce. 

ACTION: Dale Cox 
 
Councillor Qayyum asked for more information on the Get Ahead career 
development programme. Kim Smith, Chief Executive, said the programme was 
about seeing people like her get ahead. People who haven't necessarily had the 
opportunities before but have talent and drive. The Council had problems attracting 
and retaining staff and this was a way to change that. She wanted the Council to 
show there were opportunities for advancement, no matter your background. In just 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

a few months the programme had really resonated with staff - 243 people had 
already signed up. 
 
Jon Skaife added that he had participated in the programme and had been really 
impressed with the level of training and encouragement on offer. He had spent five 
days with the Design Council learning from service design experts and had been on 
a three-day negotiation programme. He was also given the opportunity to move 
around projects that gave him a broader view of the Council. 
 
Dale Cox noted that 243 staff had signed up for Get Ahead - of those there had been 
21 appointments made through the programme and 33 more were in train. The HR 
team challenged every new appointment to ask if it could be a Get Ahead position. 
 
The Chair asked how the Council could make people aware of these developments. 
Dale Cox said the key ways were advertising and a great candidate experience - but 
had more to learn on spreading the Council's message and brand through social 
media. He felt the Council had a fantastic story to tell but needed to be more 
confident telling it. 
 
The Chair noted that the Council had a close partnership with Imperial College and 
asked if it had a presence at their careers fair. Dale Cox said he would have to check 
on Imperial specifically, but the Council did attend a number of careers fairs. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton recalled the HR lead informing the Committee in January 
that the Council had 50 percent turnover of staff in their first year. He asked if that 
had changed in the intervening months. Dale Cox noted that the situation had 
improved. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked what the threshold was for a project to be 
considered by the programme management office. Matt Sales said programmes 
were designated by total value, but the Senior Leadership Team could also refer 
projects in if they were high priority but not necessarily high value. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked what the relationship was between the programme 
management office and a project team. Matt Sales said the PMO did an initial health 
check - looking at the documentation, governance, and progress made so far. Then 
the project team were required to do a highlight report every month for the PMO. The 
PMO would engage with the team to understand their delivery plans and make sure 
they were on track. That progress was then reported into Major Projects Board who 
gave assurance to SLT. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked if the PMO team were working with the BI team to 
automate their dashboards. Matt Sales said they were talking with BI - they were 
scheduled to visit Croydon to see their PowerBI dashboards in action and if 
something similar could be implemented in H&F. 
 
The Chair asked how PSR integrated with other departments. Matt Sales gave a 
number of examples of cross-department working - the corporate performance 
framework, the ZBB review programme, statutory reporting etc. 
 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Kim Smith noted that part of issue informing PSR was the recent dissolution of the 
shared services arrangements. In some areas, officers worked well with people in 
other boroughs but not their own. PSR would help refocus the organisation. It was 
also about recognising that the issues that matter to one department are problems 
for all departments. PSR would help build bridges and energy across departments 
and break down silos. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper, noting that the ZBB team had had to employ some 
specialist consultancy services with Social Care expertise, asked what assurances 
there were that the Council could develop its own analytic capability and reduce 
consultant spend. Martin Calleja said it was necessary to have that expertise across 
Adult's and Children's Social Care at a cost of around £100k. The company being 
used had done similar work for other authorities and can move 'far and fast'. Social 
Care was a key area because it was so high value and it would set constraints for 
what other services will need to provide. An officer had been seconded in to the ZBB 
team from Social Care so there would be knowledge transfer. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked if that meant wave 2 wouldn't need consultants. Martin 
Calleja said it would be looked at on a case by case basis, but the Council would go 
in house wherever possible. Officers had to balance the opportunities with the risks. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked what percentage of BI work was statutory, what was non-
statutory, and what was external sales. Jon Skaife said he could circulate this 
information to members. He added that work was being done to automate statutory 
reporting to free up analyst time. Councillor Cooper said she would like to know how 
H&F compared with other Councils in this area. 

ACTION: Jon Skaife 
 
Councillor Cooper asked what the process would be for taking ideas forward. Jon 
Skaife said IT were working on a software solution - a platform to capture ideas. He 
added that his team would provide the infrastructure for departments to do their own 
ideation work and carry ideas forward. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how long the ZBB process would take. Martin 
Calleja said it would run concurrently with the traditional budget setting timeline. 
There was a challenge meeting with members in July. By the end of October, the 
first wave of service reviews should be complete. The Council's budget had to be 
formally agreed in March 2020. 
 
Councillor Qayyum asked what the major risks were with the ZBB process. Martin 
Calleja said the biggest risk was that the Council doesn't deliver the savings 
necessary. There were also risks around directorates being inconsistent in their 
approach, and the appetite from members for the options that were generated 
through the process. 
 
 

6. BRIEFING ON THE ZERO BASED BUDGETING AND EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME  
 
Martin Calleja outlined the Zero Based Budgeting (ZBB) programme and noted that 
officers had initiated 11 service reviews and were supporting them up to completion 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

by the end of October. The biggest review area in the first wave was customer 
contact and customer services - which was currently very complex in H&F and 
presented a major opportunity for taking a more efficient approach. Other key areas 
included HR - looking at productivity and agency spend, commissioning and 
contracts - looking at reductions and managing the market, and social care. 
 
The Chair asked what the ZBB process would be like for departments - would they 
set out the statutory functions they were required to deliver and work from there? 
Martin Calleja said departments would have to look at their statutory responsibilities, 
the level of need in the borough, current and projected activity levels, and their unit 
costs. They would also have to provide evidence of outcomes and ask themselves 
the question, 'is the service making a real difference?'. 
 
The Chair asked what happened if teams didn't engage with the process. What if 
services say they are already as efficient as possible? Martin Calleja said the ZBB 
team would challenge departments if their submissions weren't serious and robust. 
 
The Chair asked about the capacity and capability in departments to do this work. 
Martin Calleja said there was real ownership and appetite for this work at the senior 
management level. The ZBB team were also investing in support to help 
departments with evidence gathering and analysis. The key challenge was taking 
time from the day job - but it was being taken seriously by management teams and 
they recognise the importance of getting it right. 
 
Lisa Redfern said, in roles leading Adult Social Care at a number of authorities, she 
felt like most of her job over the past eight or nine years had been about making 
savings. Departments have had to make continual savings without impacting on 
service quality. That has been the reality for most teams for a while now. ZBB will 
enhance that process by giving officers more tools to test their assumptions and 
evidence their approach. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent noted that calling it ZBB was misleading as in a true ZBB 
process a business sets its goals then looks at the best way to spend its money to 
achieve those goals. That may mean investing more for greater revenue for example 
- but the Council can't invest more - funding will continue to reduce. Martin Calleja 
said the process was true to ZBB principles but given the financial context there was 
a focus on affordability. The model and guidance reflected that. The ZBB team were 
moderating expectations around growth. 
 
The Chair asked for clarification on the scope of the exercise - was the goal to 
reduce spend by £50m or for the Council's P&L to be £50m better off? Martin Calleja 
said the latter, officers were looking at options to increase revenue through 
commercial ventures, substituting revenue from Section 106 etc. 
 
The Chair asked about the cost of the process and whether the reviews would cause 
disruption for departments. Lisa Redfern said officers wouldn't let the process disrupt 
the day-to-day work of departments. There was a recognition amongst all senior 
officers that the Council had to do something different to meet the continued financial 
challenges it faced. She added that PSR should provide greater oversight of 
departments. If there were any outliers in terms of efficiency or spend then they 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

would come to the surface much quicker. That would prompt more robust challenge 
from colleagues. She hoped ZBB would help bring a more business-orientated way 
of working with budgets to the Council. 
 
Cllr Vincent asked if the ZBB team was charging departments for their time (in the 
same way legal would for example). Martin Calleja said there wouldn't be internal 
charges - it was a central cost. 
 
The Chair asked Hitesh Jolapara what the biggest difference the ZBB programme 
would make for him. Hitesh replied that ZBB would provide greater insights into 
departments. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers present for their time preparing and presenting to the 
committee and the committee members for their contributions. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.00 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 12



Our People

Our strategy is to create a confident, capable and creative workforce to
deliver our vision and to be ‘the best’ council in the country within five years.

Our ambition is to be regarded as having the best workforce, and the best,
most exciting opportunities for employment in local government.

Our measure of success will be what we can achieve together for our
residents, and how well we and others regard the council.

PSR PAC workforce update 
September 2019

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



What we will cover today

1. People & Talent – how are we doing?
2. Our workforce context & measuring success
3. Our organisational development (OD) approach
4. A spotlight on:

• Staff survey 
• Get Ahead
• Apprenticeships
• Performance Management 

5. Next steps - priorities

P
age 14



People & Talent – how are we doing?

Strengths

1. Sparky, energised team wanting to make a difference
2. Clear People Strategy and vision 
3. Leadership and alignment following a refocus on priorities 

Areas for improvement 

1. Pace and resolution 
2. Overspending against budget
3. Focused on activity but without a clear plan 

P
age 15



WORKFORCE CONTEXT
Understanding more about where we are right now

Department
Turnover (%)

Turnover of employees in their first 2 
years of employment [%]

Q1 Q1

Children’s Services 1.8% 1.2%

Finance and Governance 2.8% 1.1%

Public Services Reform 4.6% 1.8%

Social Care 4.1% 1.0%

The Economy Department 3.4% 0.5%

The Environment Department 1.6% 0.8%

LBHF Turnover 2.6% 0.96%

LBHF Turnover rolling 
year [%]
2017-18: 13.4%
2018-19: 16.2%

Turnover 1st Qtr

Exit interview process now in place communicated 
to all members of staff. Manager to send leaver 
letter and ask staff member to complete exit 
questionnaire – information will collated to provide 
trend analysis through BI team

IBC cannot currently automate exit questionnaires 
this will be reviewed after stabilisation October 
2019

Headcount Apr-18 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

Children’s Services 378 322 325 342

Finance and Governance 200 273 391 400

Public Services Reform 163 123 122 80

Social Care 230 193 189 205

The Economy Department 313 377 376 386

The Environment Department 580 611 609 602

LBHF Staff 1,864 1,899 2,012 2,015

FTE Apr-18 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

Children’s Services 345 301 303 320

Finance and Governance 190 269 346 353

Public Services Reform 159 120 120 78

Social Care 217 184 180 196

The Economy Department 291 359 359 368

The Environment Department 538 567 566 559

LBHF Staff 1,739 1,800 1,874 1,874

Increase in headcount from April 18 – June 19 was 
insourcing of Mitie (49) and Amey (103).  In 
addition organisational structural changes across 
directorates account for headcount changes 

P
age 16



WORKFORCE CONTEXT
Contingent workforce 

Agency usage:

Directorate 
Headcount Spend % total staff 

Q1 Q1

Children’s Services 129 £872,865 24%

Finance and Governance 62 £863,357 11%

Public Services Reform 37 £457,815 27%

Social Care 85 £697,185 27%

The Economy Department 187 £1,764,901 28%

The Environment Department 36 £327,857 5%

Totals 536 £4,983,980 23%

Sickness:

Average no of days sick per worker is 3.9 days, National av. 4.1 days (2018)
Low confidence in accurate self service reporting
40% of total of sickness is due to long term sickness
60% of total no of sickness is due to short term sickness
80% of Top 10 causes of sickness relate to both short and long term sickness

Top 10 Causes of Sickness Absence

Cause %

Anxiety/Stress 19.2

Other Med Conditions 14.6

Back 8.2

Operation/Post Op. 7.9

Muscular/skeletal 7.4

E,N,T(inc.cold&flu) 7.3

Depression 4.7

Stomach or bowel 4.4

Virus 3.7

Chest/Bronchitis 3.0

Agency spend  
• RMB have introduced stringent controls over 

new assignments and will be reviewing all 
current assignments that have lasted for more 
than 12 months or involve a day rate of more 
than £300

• Agency workers fill scarce skills, specialist 
short term and hard to recruit roles

• Expenditure during May 2019 shows a higher 
figure partly due to 5 weeks recorded data 
instead of previous months 4 weeks. 

• Sickness recording is self service 
functionality and staff need to 
input their sickness and 
manager approval required

• Policy in place
• Training in place and 
• Comms regularly sent out to 

managers reminding them of 
their responsibility to ensure 
sickness is recorded by 
employee and managed

P
age 17



Measuring success

Our proposed Key Performance Indicators

KPI’s “under development”

1. Increase in best companies engagement index (Staff Survey 2020) 

improve rating from 53% to 60% 

2. Increase in productivity (maximising the use of our office space) e.g. staff 

to desk ratio target is 10 members of staff to 6 desks. We also expect to 

see an increase in delivery of outputs against business plan priorities.

3. Reduction in agency spend and total pay bill (RFE) circa 25% reduction in 

year (Power BI dashboard has been created to help us monitor spend)

4. Staff say they are proud to work for H&F and recommend the organisation 

as a great place to work (a new pulse survey will be introduced in Dec 

2019 to assess this )

5. Reduction in annual labour turnover (16.2% in 18/19)

6. Increase in internal appointments through Get Ahead 

7. Management to staff ratio (under development and will follow - ZBB)

P
age 18



Our Organisational Development Approach

OD Vision and Purpose

A high performing, agile, compassionate organisation demonstrated through a highly engaged workforce 

who deliver positive outcomes for the residents and businesses of the borough 

People Strategy  2018 - 2022

Defining the 

culture we 

aspire to (the 

destination)

Designing the 

interventions to 

change culture 

and behaviour

Implementing the interventions to change 

behaviour and culture

Tracking progress and effectiveness of interventions

Plan – Do - Review

2021

Reaching our 

destination

People and Talent Interventions  (System Wide Approach)

Performance Framework

Leadership & Management 

Development

Values & Behaviours

Policies & Systems

Total Reward 

Employee 

Engagement

Talent Management

Organisational Design & 

reducing the cost of the pay bill 

Employer Value Proposition & 

Employer Brand 

P
age 19



“Spotlight on” 4 areas…

1. Employee engagement - Staff Survey 

2. Talent management - Get Ahead 

3. Talent management - Apprenticeships

4. Performance Framework – Performance Management 

P
age 20



Spotlight on:  Staff Survey  

• Staff Survey working group established to develop corporate action plan
• All DMT’s cascaded results to staff within directorates
• Local action plans have been developed
• Key corporate actions against our top 5 priorities

✓ TU partnership – health and wellbeing
✓ Investment in learning and development 
✓ Total Reward 
✓ Accommodation and HTH decant
✓ Leadership and management development programmes

P
age 21



P
age 22



P
age 23



“You said - We did”

You said

Better buildings to work in with more 
flexible/smart working solutions.

We did

Office moves to Shortlands 
and Clockworks with a 
modern working environment

Our career development 
programme ‘Get ahead’ now 
has 276 sign ups

Senior leaders engaging with 
staff at team meeting events, 
staff recognition through 
team meetings. Open plan 
working enabling leaders to 
be more visible 

2,000 laptops distributed to 
staff
IBC implementation Dec 18

Better opportunities for permanent 
staff including secondments etc.  
Better working environment and tech 
that works properly.

More positive feedback and a 
sense of being valued. Training 
opportunities. A more accessible 
senior leadership team.

Better resources – “budget 
handsets and PCs/Laptops that can 
barely execute a simple task is not 
capable of moving at a speed we 
require. It's 2018”

P
age 24



Benefits 

• Our investment in learning and development, 
employee support and employee engagement 
should increase staff productivity .  We are modelling 
how to measure that now

• Positive resident feedback & employee recognition –
sharing compliments with employees   

P
age 25



Impact on our residents – compliment corner 

Staff message from Director:  I hope you’re all having a great week. I want to start off with 

saying a very BIG THANK YOU to one of our members of staff for the incredible work they do. 

I got a very appreciative email from the daughter of a resident where she said:

“Pamela has shown real, genuine, concern for my mother. She has 

demonstrated a level of professionalism that is without doubt some 

of the best work I’ve seen. She’s competent and intelligent, and 

above all she listens to all of your concerns with real empathy.

The best way for me to sum this up is to say that it’s as though my 

mum has a voice, in Pamela, at those meetings.

I wanted to take this opportunity to say thank you to her for all of 

the hard work she has done for my mother.

Thanks very much indeed Pamela!”

Pamela – well done! 😊 Resident satisfaction is the most important thing!

P
age 26



Spotlight on - Get Ahead

Flagship talent programme to ‘grow our own’ talent to reduce churn 
and reduce agency spend - sponsored by the Chief Executive 

1. Get your information out there!
2. Make the most of training and development opportunities
3. Look for job opportunities internally 

Directorate Recruitment in 

Progress

Successful 

Recruitment

Unsuccessful

Recruitment 

Grand 

Total

Adult Social Care 3 1 3 7

Children's Services 7 4 1 12

Finance & Governance 1 8 2 11

Economy Department 20 11 2 33

Public Service Reform 1 16 6 23

Environment Department 10 6 9 25

Grand Total 42 46 23 111

No. of Project Based Learning 

Opportunities

No. of Secondment 

Recruitment Opportunities 

No. of Permanent 

Recruitment Opportunities

11 49 51

• There are currently 276 employees registered on the Get Ahead programme. 
• There are 46 employees who have been successfully recruited into a Get Ahead Role, 

ranging from a Permanent position, secondment or project-based learning 
opportunity. 

• The other 230 employees currently registered on the scheme,  have development 
plans in place and are attending workshops, shadowing, mentoring and training.

• There are a number of career guidance workshops taking place in mid-September.  
• In addition, to increase membership there are further career/ information day drop-

in sessions. The drop in will also highlight information such as the current vacancies, 
projects available and upcoming workshops

P
age 27



Spotlight on - Apprenticeships 

Apprenticeship Levy
Paid into 

Levy since 
2017

10% Top Up from 
Gov’t

Levy Pot Spent Levy Levy set to 

expire in 
October 
2019

£990,53
4

£98,627 £1,089,07
3

£79,445 £121,698

Top 3 actions:
1. Apprenticeship Ambassador
2. Apprenticeship campaign for LBFH (communications and visibility) 
3. This year sees the implementation of the ability to transfer 25% of the levy to our partners for 

apprenticeships. We are currently exploring with economic development how best to utilise this approach.

It is important to note that the levy pot has a two year lifecycle to spend before it is taken away by the 
Government to be reinvested. 

Department
Number of 

employees

Apprenticeships 

19/20

Public 

Sector 

Target

Aspirational 

Target

Children’s Services 342 8 8 16

Finance and Governance 400 7 9 18

Public Services Reform 80 6 2 4

Social Care 205 9 5 10

The Economy Department 386 19 9 18

The Environment 

Department
602 13

14
28

LBHF Staff 2015 62 47 94

Apprenticeships at the council Levels 1-7 (L7  highest levy 

opportunity)

Business Administrator L3 Customer Service L2 & L3

Accountancy / Taxation 

Professional L7

Social Worker L6

Children’s and Young Peoples 

Workforce L3

Plumbing & Heating Technician 

L3
Intelligence Analyst L4 Procurement L4

Solicitor L7 Electrical Maintenance L3

Team Leader L3 Chartered Manager L6

Project Management L4 Highways maintenance skilled 

operative L2
Care Leadership & Management 

L5

Project Manager L6

HR Support L3 Regulatory Compliance Officer 

L4
Operations Manager L5 Accountancy L3 

P
age 28



Spotlight on - Performance Management

• Dedicated support in P&T to focus on this
• Introduce a new performance management framework commencing 1/4/20 

that focuses on quality conversations and continuous improvement
• Introduction of Performance Standards for managers 
• Refine the Managers induction
• Improve Management Essentials training

…September – March 2020 

P
age 29



P&T top 10 priority activity in the next 6 months 

1. Managing our people better – essential training for managers incl. diversity and 
inclusion, recruitment, investigations and appeals 

2. Workforce intelligence - managers must have essential workforce analytics 
every month to improve decision making and control staffing related costs 

3. Wellbeing  - top 10 plan (with TU’s)

4. Culture Change – kick off campaign at leaders forum in September (top 150)

5. Learning & Development – communicate what is available to all staff 

6. Future Leaders – a sponsorship programme (Roffey Park)

7. Employee engagement - introduce regular pulse surveys & recognition schemes 

8. Performance Management - real conversations replacing traditional ‘appraisal’ 

9. Reduce agency costs & pay bill – RMB, controls and compliance 

10. Recruitment review – a brilliant candidate and manager experience 

Plus ensure we have a fit for the future People and Talent service

P
age 30



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
PUBLIC SERVICE REFORM POLICY AND 

ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

10 September 2019 
 

 

BREXIT IMPACT REPORT 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Public Service Reform – Councillor Adam 
Connell 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
All Council Departments 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Lisa Redfern, Director of Public Service Reform 
 

Report Author: Peter Smith, Head of 
Policy and Strategy 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2206 
E-mail: peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The attached Brexit Briefing paper is adapted from the latest in a series of 

briefings updating Cabinet Members on the potential impact of Brexit on H&F 
and the mitigating actions being planned or developed.  Attached, as 
Appendix 1, is Briefing No.8. 

 
2. PURPOSE OF THE PAPER 

 
2.1. The report is for information and discussion, it makes no recommendations, 

proposals or options for analysis, for the Committee to consider. 
 

2.2. The author of this report has consulted with all Council Departments in 
preparing the Brexit Briefings. 
 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 
equality, legal, financial, commercial or IT implications arising from the report 
itself. 
 

3.2. There are many and varied potential financial implications of Brexit. The 
report sets out areas of financial risk including price inflation and interest 
rates, loss of funding and the impact of uncertainty and any slowdown in the 
wider economy on Council services and regeneration. Officers will continue to 
monitor and re-assess financial planning assumptions in these areas as 
further information becomes available. 
 

3.3. From March 2019 industries such as construction, hospitality & catering, 
healthcare and retail sectors will be directly affected.  Pay rates may have to 
increase (to attract resident workers) and this could affect the Council 
commercially as contract prices might increase. The potential implications for 
business of Brexit are covered in the briefing paper. 
 

3.4. The potential risks arising from Brexit are in the paper and IT services is 
evaluating the impact on our service delivery.  
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

4.1. The risk of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit (Workforce, Housing, Contracts, Residents, 
Finances) was added to the Council’s Corporate Risk Register last year.  

 
4.2. The attached briefing paper sets out officers’ assessment of the potential 

impact of this risk on service delivery and details a range of current and 
planned mitigations which will be in place should this risk materialise.  This is 
the latest in a series of papers prepared to ensure that the Council is 
assessing the impact of the decision to leave the EU on 31 October 2019. 
 

4.3. Implications verified by: David Hughes, Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 
Insurance, tel: 020 7361 2389. 

 
5. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 
 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing No.8 
 
 

Page 32



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

Briefing No 8: August Update on the Potential Impacts of Brexit in H&F and 

Mitigating Actions Being Planned or Developed 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The Brexit deadline is now 31 October.  Cross-party discussions in the Spring 

made little progress in fashioning any new withdrawal agreement that might 

win a majority in Parliament and we are now negotiating under a new Prime 

Minister.   

 

1.2 If no withdrawal agreement is passed by both Parliament and the EU before 

31 October then we are facing a no-deal Brexit or a further extension.  This 

scenario is looking increasingly likely, given the very limited parliamentary 

time available to approve any new withdrawal agreement and the threat of a 

prorogued parliament. 

 

1.3 If a withdrawal agreement is reached and ratified, it could include provisions 

for a transitional period, or implementation phase, which would extend the 

negotiating period for the future relationship.  It would provide time for 

negotiations on the future UK-EU relationship to continue before substantive 

change in the UK’s status takes place. 

 

2. Settled Status 

 

2.1 In March 2018 the Government and the EU agreed a reciprocal settlement 

scheme to safeguard the rights of EU nationals in the UK and British citizens 

in other EU states.  To be granted settled status, all EU citizens resident in the 

UK will need to apply online by June 2021.  Their rights will be protected up 

until the end of 2020.  There are an estimated 30,000 EU citizens resident in 

H&F.  The following Government website sets out the detail of the settled 

status arrangement and how to apply: https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-

citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status. 

 

2.2 The reciprocal settled status agreement, however, is only secured if the UK 

and EU sign up to the Withdrawal Treaty, i.e. if an overall Brexit deal is 

negotiated.  In the event of a no-deal Brexit, the settled status agreement 

would fall and it would be up to individual nation states as to whether or not 

they choose to implement the settled status scheme.  The UK Government, 

has opted to progress a unilateral arrangement, whereby it progresses the 

online process of EU residents applying for settled status and retaining their 

rights under UK law.   

 

Page 33

https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status
https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status


Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

2.3 The online application process for the EU Settlement Scheme went live on 30 

March 2019.  The latest Government figures show that 8,300 H&F residents 

had applied to the scheme by 30 June 2019.  H&F Council is operating a free 

scanning and verification service to all residents to assist with their 

applications to the Scheme.  This service is available from the Register Office 

at The Clockwork Building, Beavor Lane, Hammersmith.  As of 9 August 

2019, a total of 217 residents had used this service. 

 

2.4 The position for UK residents living in the EU is unclear as they would be 

subject to whatever decisions each of the 27 EU states came to as to whether 

or not they choose to unilaterally implement the settled status scheme.  

Where EU states choose not to implement the scheme, we might see the 

return of significant numbers of, largely, elderly UK citizens from those states, 

with accompanying housing and care needs. 

2.5 A strapline at the bottom of the H&F website directs EU citizens to where they 

can learn about the Settlement Scheme and access any advice and support 

they may need. 

 

3. Workforce 

 

3.1 The government has said that there will be strict controls on unskilled 

migrants (EU and non-EU) entering Britain after Brexit and earning less than 

£30,000 per annum.  This will directly affect the construction, hospitality & 

catering, healthcare and retail sectors.  Pay rates may have to increase (to 

attract resident workers) and this could affect the inflation rate (and, therefore, 

potentially, interest rates). 

 Table 1: High impact employment sectors 

Sector Number of employees 
in H&F in 2017 

Proportion of total 
employees in H&F 

Construction 
 

3,500 2.6% 

Retail 
 

15,000 11.1% 

Accommodation and 
Food Services 

11,000 8.1% 

Healthcare 
 

12,000 8.9% 

N.B. These figures relate to jobs located in H&F not to employees resident in the borough.  

Some of these employees will be resident elsewhere. 

  

Page 34



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

Construction and development 

 

3.2 Construction contractors and developers that officers are in contact with are 

concerned about the effect that Brexit could have on recruitment and 

retention.  Data produced by Build London indicates that, on the Thames 

Tideway project alone, the majority of the workforce recruited is from Eastern 

Europe, i.e. non-UK nationals. 

Social care 

 

3.3 The national analysis of the potential impact of Brexit on social care providers 

looks bleak: 

 Ending freedom of movement after Brexit could result in 115,000 fewer 

adult social care workers by 2026, according to a report by Global Future 

published in August 2018; 

 There are at present 1.3 million care workers in the UK, but an estimated 

2 million will be needed by 2035 to cope with the rising number of elderly 

people; 

 A report on future migration patterns by the independent Migration 

Advisory Committee, published in October 2018, found that more than 

one in 20 social care staff (5.9%) were from the EU in 2017, with staff 

from new member states making an increasing contribution to the 

workforce. 

 

“The combination of rising demand, downward pressure on public spending 

leading to relatively low wages making many jobs relatively unattractive to 

resident workers, and the absence of a non-EEA (European Economic Area) 

work-related route for the lower-skilled roles in the sector mean that this is a 

sector that could face even more serious problems if EEA migration was 

restricted.”  

(Global Future report on the impact of Brexit on the social care workforce, August 

2018) 

 

3.4 H&F’s three main current homecare providers; Sage, Mi Homecare and CRG, 

have anywhere between 11-21% of their workforce from EU countries and 

they all pay London Living Wage, in accordance with contractual 

requirements.  These three contractors provide 81% of the Council’s 

homecare services. 

3.5 Officers are actively assessing the potential impact of social care provision in 

the event of a no-deal Brexit and service providers are supplying their 

contingency plans. 

3.6 The biggest concern of H&F commissioners is around residential care homes, 

and the potential impact on nursing.  Official figures show that the number of 

Page 35



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

nurses from the EU registering to work in the UK dropped by 96%, less than a 

year after the Brexit vote, so this will compound the existing challenges 

around recruiting nurses to work in care homes and finding suitably skilled 

and qualified nursing home managers. 

 

4. Goods and Services 

 

Housing and construction 

 

4.1 The construction industry relies heavily on foreign migrant labour for skilled 

and non-skilled roles.  It is feared that outside of the EU, which guarantees the 

right to free movement, the skills shortage could worsen.  If immigration is 

limited, particularly for skilled workers, the UK could witness higher project 

costs where labour demand outstrips supply.  This could have a knock-on 

effect on the capacity of housebuilders to meet the government's housing 

targets, with cost increases possible for the housing market and construction 

companies.  This further decline in housebuilding could deepen the housing 

crisis, especially in London. 

 

4.2 Alternatively, if global investors start to take their money out of the UK 

property market, this could lead to a reduction in prices and free up 

investment properties that are currently sitting empty. 

 

4.3 It is likely that Brexit will have an impact on current rules around immigration 

and who is eligible to apply for housing.  Currently, EU citizens, if they meet 

additional criteria, can apply for housing (which is considered a public fund). 

This could change following Brexit. 

 

4.4 We don’t know yet if any change would be retrospective and, if so, how that 

would impact on existing tenants of temporary accommodation.  Permanent 

tenants would not be impacted as they would already have a permanent 

tenancy, although it could impact on their ability to succeed to a tenancy.  

 

Supply chain 

 

4.5 Business Continuity and Corporate Procurement are identifying clusters of 

corporate contracts (e.g. food, IT, construction, care and medical equipment) 

that may be more sensitive to no-deal Brexit changes. 

 

4.6 A cross-departmental Service Resilience Group (SRG), consisting of the core 

Directors from the Strategic Leadership Team, is forming strategies around 

contingencies for partial or whole loss of critical suppliers, such as sourcing 

from alternative markets and gaining insight of the local area distribution 

Page 36



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

network. The SRG meets quarterly and its next meeting is 2 September, 

which will be chaired by the Chief Executive. 

 

4.7 In addition to the SRG, a ‘Tiger Team’ has been formed with specific Assistant 

Directors given lead responsibility for making urgent decisions in key areas of 

the council’s operations, i.e.: Finance; Workforce; Community Cohesion; 

Housing and homelessness; Supply chain; Education; Regulatory, and; 

Demand for services. 

 

4.8 With changes to the council’s IT network, all services have been requested to 

either refresh or complete new Service Continuity Plans by 20 September to 

ensure that these are up to date with the roll out of new technology.  Many of 

these Plans have appended Brexit Plans and these will also be updated, as 

necessary. 

 

Health and social care 

 

4.9 The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has undertaken an 

analysis of the supply chain for medicines, including radioisotopes and 

vaccines, which identified those products that are imported from the EU and 

the European Economic Area (EEA). Without a deal, the supply chains for 

these products may be affected by changes to border processes and 

procedures. 

 

4.10 To address this issue DHSC is working with the relevant marketing 

authorisation holders to ensure that UK stockpiles of medicines are adequate 

to cope with any potential delays at the border that may arise in the short 

term. 

 

4.11 In the event we leave the EU without a deal, based on the current cross-

government planning scenario, the Government will ensure the UK has an 

additional 6 weeks’ supply of medicines in case imports from the EU through 

certain routes are affected. This is the current planning assumption but will, of 

course, be subject to revision in light of future developments. 

 

4.12 DHSC are, therefore, asking pharmaceutical companies that supply medicines 

for NHS patients from, or via, the EU or EEA, to ensure they have a minimum 

of 6 weeks’ additional supply in the UK, over and above their business as 

usual operational buffer stocks, by 31 October 2019.  The DHSC is also 

working with industry to improve trader readiness in preparation for the new 

customs procedures that will come into force on day 1 if we leave the EU 

without a deal: 

Page 37



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

 changing or clarifying regulatory requirements so that companies can 

continue to sell their products in the UK if we leave with no deal; 

 arrangements to deal with shortages; 

 in addition to normal shortage management routes, enabling ministers to 

issue serious shortage protocols to pharmacists. 

 

4.13 All these arrangements echo the plans put in place ahead of 29 March and 

will be essential to the continuation of medicines and medical products if the 

UK leaves the EU without a deal. 

 

4.14 The Department continues to centrally coordinate contingency measures to 

mitigate risks to supply.  This removes the need for any stockpiling at local 

level, which could cause medicine shortages and put patient care at risk. 

 

4.15 The DHSC has launched the Medicines Supply Contingency Planning 

Programme. Through this programme the Government is seeking information 

about contingency plans put in place in respect of medicines that meet a 

relevant criterion.  

 

4.16 Separately, they recognise that there are some products that have short shelf 

lives and cannot be stockpiled. Where such products are at present imported 

to the UK from the EU/EEA via road haulage and roll-on, roll-off sea, road and 

rail routes, DHSC is asking suppliers to ensure they have plans in place to air 

freight those products to avoid any border delays that may arise in the event 

of a no-deal exit from the EU.  

 

4.17 The programme covers products that are prescription-only medicines and 

pharmacy-only medicines that come from or via the EU/EEA via road haulage 

and roll-on, roll-off sea, road and rail routes. 

 

 

5. EU Legislation 

5.1 EU law and regulation underpins many council services (such as waste and 

environmental standards).  The Withdrawal Act 2018 provided for all EU law 

to be brought into UK law to ensure that there was legal certainty for 

businesses and residents. The Withdrawal Act is now law and this legal 

certainty would remain in place even under a no-deal exit.  However, many 

UK laws refer to EU regulations or to EU agencies.  The Withdrawal Act gives 

ministers the ability to amend such laws where EU institutions or processes 

are mentioned. 

5.2 Given the number of Statutory Instruments that are required it is not currently 

clear whether all changes will be communicated via the no-deal technical 

Page 38



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

papers or through direct communications by Government departments to 

relevant professional bodies or directly to councils. 

 

6. Communities 

 

6.1 To date officers have not seen any evidence in their work with communities, 

through tenant and resident associations (TRAs) or consultation activities and 

events, that Brexit has affected community cohesion in H&F.  We encourage 

TRAs to work with all residents in their community and it may well be that we 

run a series of community focussed events to celebrate the diversity of our 

estates, and the wealth of nationalities across our borough.  The CommUNITY 

Day event of 21 July, held in Ravenscourt Park, was very much focussed on a 

celebration of the borough’s diversity in the shadow of Brexit. 

 

6.2 If problems in the supply chain should lead to a shortage of basic and vital 

items – foodstuffs, medicines etc – this may lead to social unrest.  Early 

indications could be captured via Tension Monitoring, possibly on a weekly 

basis, using social media as an early warning sign.  The Prevent teams 

across London are monitoring community tensions on a regular basis in the 

run up to Brexit and will continue to do so post-Brexit. 

6.3  The Government has issued Brexit community engagement guidance for local 

authorities. The guidance, including case studies from other authorities, is 

located here - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-

guidance-for-local-authorities  

6.4 The Government has also issued a public information campaigns toolkit: 

https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed2019032109532

1/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be 

 

7. EU Funding 

 

7.1 In terms of ESOL Functional Skills (maths and English and ICT) provision, our 

Adult Learning and Skills Service was funded by the ESFA grant up until 

August 2019, when the budget was devolved to the London Mayor.  We are 

told that the sub-regions, in our case West London, will continue to receive the 

current level of funding up to 2021, after which there is no guarantee that 

funding will continue.  The H&F Adult Learning and Skills Service is currently 

the second highest recipient of the ESFA budget in West London, but that is 

likely to change after 2021, when we are likely to have a reduction if the 

devolution is based on the West London demographics of deprivation. 

 

Page 39

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed20190321095321/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be
https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed20190321095321/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be


Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

7.2  With regard to the London Mayor’s Skills and Adult Education Strategy for 

Londoners, the Mayor has given guarantees to prioritise the following in 

relation to substitutes for ESF funding: 

 those with poor basic skills – English, maths and ESOL; 

 those at risk of redundancy from automation and other digital changes; 

 parents and care leavers, particularly those who are long-term 

unemployed or stuck in low paid/insecure work, providing support with 

childcare where possible; 

 people with SEND; 

 BAME groups; 

 people who are long-term unemployed (i.e. for more than 12 months) and 

economically inactive and/or cycling in and out of work; 

 people who face complex barriers including those who are homeless, 

facing drug and/or alcohol addiction, and ex-offenders. 

 

7.3 Environmental improvement projects, such as the sustainable drainage 

systems (SuDS) on Queen Caroline Estate and Maystar Estate, were funded 

by the EU Life project.  From October 2019 we will not be able to apply to this 

funding stream anymore.  Our two improvement budgets, Housing Estate 

Improvement Projects [run by Groundwork] and the Neighbourhood 

Improvement Fund, use Housing Revenue Account funds. 

 

 

8. Wider Economic Impacts 

 

8.1 At a high-level there are several specific financial risks regarding a no-deal 

Brexit.  The potential for short and medium-term disruption includes: 

 Inflation - this is likely to increase due to a potential fall in the value of the 

pound, the impact of tariffs, supply chain concerns and labour shortages; 

 An economic slowdown - tariffs and supply chain concerns could disrupt 

trade whilst some businesses may decide to relocate to the EU zone or 

reduce plans for UK investment; 

 Worse public finances - lower growth will mean less funding for public 

services; 

 EU firms with a presence in H&F – European businesses operating in the 

borough may leave or reduce their footprint over time, resulting in fewer 

jobs and knock-on effects for local businesses through lower demand and 

changes to supply chains.  

 

8.2  The extent to which each of the above factors impacts on the Council 

depends on their depth and duration.  As examples: 

 Each extra 1% of inflation will lead to a cost pressure of £0.8m per annum 

for H&F Council wages and £2m for supplies and services and payments 

to others; 

Page 40



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

 An economic slowdown would impact on a range of services and income 

budgets.  For example, planning income, land charges income and 

business rates income could all decline, while the cost of the local council 

tax support scheme and the costs to the Council of addressing 

homelessness would be likely to increase;  

 Worsening of public finances may result in longer and deeper cuts to 

government funding.  To date local authority funding has not received the 

protection provided to health or police budgets; 

 The viability of regeneration initiatives might be affected.  Economic 

uncertainty, such as around housing values, may hamper regeneration 

initiatives or be impacted by adverse movements in long-term interest 

rates. 

 

8.3  Local authority finances are already under significant pressure from cuts of 

59p in the £ imposed by national government.  A National Audit Office report 

from last year emphasised that the financial position of the local authority 

sector, particularly for those authorities with social care responsibilities, has 

worsened markedly since 2014.  As set out above, in the short to medium 

term, a no-deal Brexit is likely to add to such pressures for both the wider 

sector and for Hammersmith and Fulham.  The financial resilience of many 

authorities will be further tested.  The position over the longer term is 

uncertain. 

 

8.4 As a member of the EU, the UK has access to the European Investment Bank 

(EIB) and the European Investment Fund (EIF).  Losing both these revenue 

streams could have a significant impact on the delivery of big infrastructure 

projects as well as start-ups across the UK.   

 

9. MHCLG EU Exit Funds 

 

9.1 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government has made 

available funds amounting to £314,984 for each primary authority to assist in 

mitigating the negative impacts of Brexit.  The allocation of over a third of 

these funds has been agreed by the Cabinet Member for the Economy and 

the Arts, as set out in Appendix 1 (a further £15,000 was previously allocated 

for the costs of a leaflet drop and information stall at CommUNITY Day 2019).   

 

9.2 The overall costs of Brexit to the borough are unknowable.  When the staff 

time of council employees assessing and preparing for the impact of Brexit, 

and the opportunity costs of public and private investment not made in H&F 

are included, it will be many multiples of this figure. 

 

  

Page 41



Appendix 1 – Brexit Briefing 

 

Appendix 1 

 

Project Actions  Cost 
 

Support and advice 
on EU Settlement 
Scheme application 
process 
 

Specialist adviser to be placed in H&F 
Citizens Advice. 
Awareness raising events such as workshops 
will aim to reach 1150-1200 EU citizens in the 
borough who might require advice and 
assistance. 1:1 support will be provided to 
300 residents in completing application forms. 

£45,000 

Support and advice 
on EU Settlement 
Scheme application 
process 
 

Specialist adviser to be placed in the Law 
Centre. 
Planned activities: advice and assistance 
sessions via booked appointments; training 
for other agencies and council employees to 
identify clients to refer for assistance; public 
legal education meetings; information leaflets; 
detailed information on the website. 

£49,983 

Support and advice 
for businesses 

An H&F delivered support programme 
including group sessions, diagnostic 1:1 
sessions and mentoring support for 
businesses who need more intensive 
guidance.  

£6,000 

Scanning and 
verification of 
documents and 
provisions for foreign 
visits 

The Civic Events team are providing free 
scanning and verification of documents for 
H&F residents, the demand for which is likely 
to increase once the specialist advisers are in 
post.  Civic Events are also providing shields 
and pins for an increasing number of visits of 
foreign delegates.  After Brexit it will be 
increasingly important to maintain 
relationships with European municipalities, as 
well as forging new relationships beyond 
Europe. 

£10,000 

Total  £110,983 

 

August 2019 

Peter Smith 

Policy & Strategy/PSR 

Page 42



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
PUBLIC SERVICE REFORM 

POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

10 September 2019 
 

 

PROCESS AND IMPLICATIONS OF INTRODUCING A DIRECTLY ELECTED 
MAYOR IN H&F 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Public Service Reform – Councillor Adam 
Connell 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
All Council Departments 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director Social Care 
 

Report Author: 
Peter Smith, Head of Policy and Strategy 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2206 
E-mail: peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This paper considers a proposal to introduce a new political model in H&F, 

that of a directly elected mayor.  The report sets out what the process would 
be for introducing a mayor and cabinet model of governance in H&F, in place 
of the current leader and cabinet model, and what the cost and implications of 
introducing that model of governance might be. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. The report is for information and discussion and makes no recommendations 

for the Committee to consider. 
 

  

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1. Under the Local Government Act 2000, any local council in England can hold 
a referendum on the introduction of a directly elected mayor, either by citizen 
petition or council decision.  Since the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007, councils have been allowed to introduce the 
system without a referendum but, so far, only two (Leicester and Liverpool) 
have done so.  Stoke on Trent, which introduced the system in 2002, was the 
first to abolish it by referendum in 2008.   
 

3.2. In 2012, Hartlepool followed suit as a result of a referendum initiated by 
citizen petition, with the council being run under the previous committee 
system from May 2013.  A similar referendum in neighbouring Middlesbrough, 
in 2013, saw the mayoral system retained.  During the 2016 local elections, 
voters in North Tyneside also voted to retain the mayoralty, while in Torbay a 
similar poll saw a vote to end the mayoral system from 2019. 

 
3.3. The Localism Act 2011 permitted central government to trigger referendums 

for elected mayors, and this was intended to happen in the largest cities 
during 2012.  In September 2011, citizens of Salford collected the required 
number of signatures to force a referendum, which was successful.   
 

3.4. All but 16 of the 326 local councils in England are run by a Council Leader 
elected by their fellow councillors.  Most of the local authority elected mayors 
in England have responsibility for all local services, with two district council 
mayors responsible for only environment, planning and housing.  All of 
England’s elected mayors are elected on four-year terms by the instant run-off 
Supplementary Vote.  There are no elected mayors in Scotland, Wales or 
Northern Ireland. 
 
 

4. THE PROCESS OF CHANGING SYSTEMS 
 

4.1. A campaign has been launched under the name, “Say Yes to HF Mayor” 
seeking a change in the governance arrangements of Hammersmith and 
Fulham Council.  A petition to compel the Council to hold a referendum to 
decide the issue was launched on 26 June 2019 and calls for a directly 
elected mayor and cabinet system.  Assuming the council receives it, and it is 
valid, the council must then hold a referendum, the result of which would be 
binding. 

 
Validity of a petition 

4.2. In accordance with the Local Authorities (Referendums) (Petitions) (England) 
Regulations 2011, to be valid a petition must be signed by 5% of the local 
government electorate – 6313 local government electors for any petition 
handed in from now until the end of next March would meet that requirement 
in H&F.  Each elector signing the petition must give their name and address, 
and the date of their signature. The wording of the petition must also meet 
statutory requirements so that the proposed change is clearly stated. 
 

Page 44

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Localism_Act_2011


Restrictions on publicity about the petition 
4.3. Similar to a referendum, petition regulations prohibit the council from incurring 

any expenditure publishing any material which “appears designed to influence 
local government electors in deciding whether or not to sign a petition”, or in 
assisting anyone else to do so.  The council can give factual information and 
publicity if it is done “fairly” and in fact must give statutory notice that a valid 
(or invalid) petition has been received. The petition also has to be made 
available for public inspection. 
 
On receipt of a valid petition  

4.4. The council must publish a notice that a valid petition has been received, 
giving the type of change requested and stating that a referendum will be 
held.  The local authority must draw up proposals for the operation of the form 
of governance that is the constitutional change proposed in the petition, and 
its implementation.  This is likely to take some time, and the referendum 
cannot take place until after this step has been completed.  However, there is 
a time limit on when a referendum must be held, so this stage must happen 
swiftly enough to comply with the referendum timing limits. 
 
Timing of referendum 

4.5. Once a petition has been received and validated, the referendum must be 
held “no later than” the next “ordinary day of election” - the first Thursday in 
May each year. However, if that is less than four months away when the 
petition is received, then the next ordinary day of elections would be used.   

 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF CHANGING SYSTEM 
 

Powers and governance 
5.1. Mayors do not have powers over and above those available to non-mayoral 

local authorities, thus a local authority elected mayor has powers similar to 
those of the executive committee in a Leader and Cabinet model local 
authority.  These are described as either "exclusive" powers or "co-decision" 
powers and are defined in the Local Government (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.   

 
5.2. Co-decision powers are those that a directly elected mayor shares with the 

council, notably the power to set the local authority's annual budget and agree 
its policy framework documents.  To amend or reject a mayor's proposals for 
any of these documents, the council must resolve to do so by a two-thirds 
majority. 
 

5.3. An elected mayor (in a mayor and cabinet system) also has the power to 
appoint up to nine councillors as members of a cabinet and to delegate 
powers, either to them as individuals, or to the Mayor and Cabinet committee, 
or to subcommittees of the Mayor and Cabinet committee.  In practice, the 
mayor remains personally accountable, so most mayors have chosen to 
delegate to a very limited extent. 
 

Page 45



5.4. The roles of backbench councillors are similar under a Mayor and Cabinet 
system to what they are under a Leader and Cabinet system but their powers 
are reduced, e.g. it requires two thirds of the council to vote against a mayor’s 
budget but a budget being put forward by a leader and cabinet requires over 
50% of the vote at full council.  The legal requirements around the 
establishment of Licensing, Planning and Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
remain unchanged under a Mayor and Cabinet system. 
 

5.5. A council leader can be changed at any time without a public vote but 
changing a mayor mid-term requires going back to the electorate.  Mayors 
cannot be dismissed by the municipal council, but they can be removed from 
the office by the citizens of their municipality in a referendum.  A mayor can 
also be dismissed by the Prime Minister in case of persistent transgression of 
the law. 
 
Election of a mayor – timing of first election 

5.6. The first election of a Mayor may take place separately from elections to the 
council, either on the first Thursday in May or the third Thursday in October, 
depending on the timing of the referendum.  Ordinarily, the first election takes 
place at the first available date (May or October) that falls after 3 months after 
the referendum. 

 
Costs  

5.7. If the first mayor of Hammersmith and Fulham election were to be held in 
either October 2020 or May 2021, then the costs of the poll would need to be 
met entirely by the council, as there are no other elections planned for either 
of those months.  The total costs, therefore, of a standalone referendum and 
election would amount to an estimated £740,000. This includes: 

 Cost of referendum vote:   £350,000 

 Cost of venue for referendum count: £20,000 

 Cost of election vote:    £350,000 

 Cost of venue for election count:  £20,000 
 

 
Reversing the decision to change to a mayor and cabinet system 

5.8. If the Council changes its constitution by resolution, then it can reverse that 
decision by a further resolution after 5 years.  If the constitution is changed as 
a result of a petition and referendum then it can only reverse that change by 
way of another referendum, no earlier than 10 years later. 
 
 

6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 
equality implications arising from this report. 

 

6.2. Implications verified by: Fawad Bhatti, Social Inclusion Policy Manager, tel. 
07500 103617.  
 
 

Page 46



7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1. The report is for information and there are no legal implications arising from 
this report. 
 

7.2. Implications completed by: Rhian Davies, Assistant Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services, tel. 07827 663794.  

 
 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1. The body of the report sets out potential costs, based on previous local 
election costs, of running any referendum and election and other potential 
costs should they be required.  The report is for information and discussion. 
There are no recommendations so there are no direct financial implications 
arising from this report. 

 
8.2. Implications verified by Emily Hill, Assistant Director, Corporate Finance, 

telephone 020 8753 3145.  
 
 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

13.1 The report is for information and discussion.  
 
13.2  Implications verified by: David Hughes, Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 

Insurance, tel: 020 7361 2389. 
 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 
 

Page 47


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 'Our People' Workforce Update
	5 Brexit Impact Report
	Appendix 1 - Brexit briefing 8

	6 The Process and Implications of Introducing a Directly Elected Mayor in H&F

